
NOTICE:  Agenda is subject to change.  If you require special assistance in order to attend 
any of the Town’s public meetings or events, please notify the Town of Hayden at (970) 276-3741 
at least 48 hours in advance of the scheduled event so the necessary arrangements can be made. 

AMENDED AGENDA 
HAYDEN TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

HAYDEN TOWN HALL – 178 WEST JEFFERSON AVENUE 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2024 

7:30 P.M. 

ATTENDEES/COUNCIL MAY PARTICIPATE VIRTUALLY VIA ZOOM WITH THE INFORMATION BELOW: 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84598597603?pwd=RVk4Q3dHSERQWitwUlhuNENsOWw4UT09 

Meeting ID: 845 9859 7603 
One tap mobile 

+16699009128,,84598597603# US (San Jose)
+12532158782,,84598597603# US (Tacoma)

THE TOWN WILL ALSO BROADCAST MEETINGS ON FACEBOOK LIVE AT THE TOWN’S FACEBOOK PAGE AT 
https://www.facebook.com/coloradohayden/ 

*OFFICIAL RECORDINGS AND RECORDS OF MEETINGS WILL BE THE ZOOM RECORDING AND NOT FACEBOOK LIVE. FACEBOOK
LIVE IS MERELY A TOOL TO INCREASE COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT AND IS NOT THE OFFICIAL RECORD.* 

WORK SESSION 7:00 P.M. – 7:30 P.M. 
1. STAFF REPORTS

REGULAR MEETING – 7:30 P.M. 
1a. CALL TO ORDER 
1b. OPENING PRAYER/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
1c. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
1d. ROLL CALL 
1e. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS AND UPDATES 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Citizens are invited to speak to the Council on items that are not on the agenda.  All individuals who desire to speak during public comments must sign
in using the sheet available by the Town Clerk. There is a three minute time limit per person, unless otherwise noted by the Mayor.  Please note that no
formal action will be taken on these items during this time due to the open meeting law provision; however, they may be placed on a future posted
agenda if action is required.

3. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS

4. CONSENT ITEMS
Consent agenda items are considered to be routine and will be considered for adoption by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless a Councilmember requests to pull an item from the consent agenda.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84598597603?pwd=RVk4Q3dHSERQWitwUlhuNENsOWw4UT09


A. Consideration of minutes for the Regular Meeting, February 1, 2024 Page 3 
B. Consideration to ratify payment bill vouchers dated February 6, 2024 in the amount of $74,105.88 Page 7 
C. Consideration to approve payment bill vouchers dated February 8, 2024 in the amount of $188,945.51 Page 10 
D. Consideration of the Appointment of Michele Lewis, Charlie Cook, and David “Mo” DeMorat to Hayden Page 16

Planning Commission

5. OLD BUSINESS

6. NEW BUSINESS
A. Review and Consider for Approval of Facilitation Contract with the Steadman Group LLC Page 19 
B. Page 30 

C. Page 35 

D. Page 55 

E. Page 59 

Review and Consider for Approval an Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) between Routt County 
Sheriff’s Office and Hayden Police Department
Review and Consider for Approval of Resolution 24-01 A Resolution Authorizing the Acquisition by 
Eminent Domain of Easement Interests in Real Property Situated in Routt County for the Purpose of 
Constructing a Wastewater Transmission Line
Review and Consider 1st reading Ordinance 733 An Ordinance Amending the Hayden Municipal Code 
by Amending Title 4 Concerning Animals and Establishing Additional Animal Regulations, Providing an 
Effective Date and setting a Public Hearing March 7, 2024
Consideration for the approval of and authorization for the Mayor to sign a Resolution 2024-02, a 
Resolution Supporting the Grant Application for a Community Impact Program Grant from the State 
Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund and the completion of the Northwest Colorado Skate 
Dream Wheel Park

7. PULLED CONSENT ITEMS

8. STAFF AND COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS AND UPDATES (CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY)

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF NECESSARY)

10. ADJOURNMENT



Regular Meeting                                 Hayden Town Council                                              February 1, 2024 
 

Draft minutes subject to editing and approval prior to becoming official record. 
 Page 1 of 4  

 
 

Work Session 
 
Staff & Councilmember Reports 
HAYDEN CENTER  
Sarah Stinson, Director Arts and Events:  Tickets are now on sale for the Galentine’s Soiree - A build your 
own charcuterie hosted by the Hayden Arts Commission and Alpenglow Winebar at the Hayden Granary 
on Feb 13th. We are also working on the Grand Re-opening of the Hayden Center on March 14th.  
 
Rhonda Sweetser, Director Parks and Recreation: 3rd/4th Volleyball has started. 5th grade begins next 
week. Pee Wee wrestling enrollment period is now open. Hayden Center will be offering new classes in 
February as well as changes in classes and times. Senior Citizens are able to visit the Hayden Center for 
free to walk around the gymnasium. It’s Summer Somewhere Cornhole tournament is coming up in 
February.  
 
POLICE  
Chief of Police Scurlock:  In cooperation with the Moffat/Routt County All Crimes Enforcement Team (ACET) and 
the Routt County Sheriff’s Office, Hayden PD addressed a residence at 139 N. 3rd St. Information was obtained 
during one of the interdiction days, which led to an investigation into the residence by ACET. HPD and RCSO 
provided uniformed support, and two stops were made that were related to this residence. A stolen vehicle 
from Steamboat was recovered, a woman was arrested for the stolen vehicle, a man was arrested for possession 
of Fentanyl, and another man and woman were both arrested for felony warrants. With information from one of 
the stops, ACET obtained a search warrant for the two mobile homes on 139 N. 3rd, and the Combined 
Emergency Response Team (CERT) executed the search warrant. Two men and two women were arrested for 
various drug-related charges. Another vehicle in the driveway had been stolen from Craig and was able to be 
recovered. Close to 400 Fentanyl pills, a ½ ounce of methamphetamine, and a small amount of cocaine were 
seized in the investigation.  
Chief Scurlock met with Routt County Crisis Support to establish a better relationship. We are working to have 
all PD staff members meet quarterly with a mental health professional as a kind of “regular checkup.” This is not 
only something that will support our employees, but it’s part of the council’s strategic goals.  
met with Routt County Crisis support team to establish a relationship with them. Scott would like to have 
quarterly mental health support with the Police Department. Working on policy to allow an On Duty 
Work Outs for staff.  
Councilmember Bell asked if there were ways to retain and increase the Police Department. Town 
Manager, Mathew Mendisco explained that word of mouth and talking up the benefits and atmosphere 
that working with the Town of Hayden is encouraged. Other options are to send new recruits to the 
Police Academy in Glenwood.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS 
Bryan Richards, Public Works Director:  Troubleshooting and repairing street lights. Found that conduit is 
crushed and wires are touching. Water has been working on year-end reports and backflow reporting. 
Staff has been working on migrating from paper to digital documents. Looking into Work Order 
software to improve efficiency. 
 
PLANNING 
Tegan Ebbert, Community Development Director:   There is a public forum scheduled on Feb 15th at the 
Hayden Center with the Town and first impressions of Routt County. The forum is to educate on in 
Home Day Care options.  



Regular Meeting                                 Hayden Town Council                                              February 1, 2024 
 

Draft minutes subject to editing and approval prior to becoming official record. 
 Page 2 of 4  

 
 

Looking forward at the summer mixer series. EDC would like to take 3 different business throughout the 
summer and spotlight them.  
 
Mathew Mendisco, Town Manager:  Engineering RFP was sent out. Staff will then eliminate any 
applications that did not meet the requirements. Finalist will be presented at a regular council meeting.  
 
Sidewalks, Business Parks, Skateparks, have combined for over 14 million in capital improvement 
projects. Staff report to be continued following meeting.  
 
Andrea Salazar, Finance Manager: none.  
 
Staff reports will continue at the end of the meeting.  
 
Councilmember Hicks: Brought up there is a new bill being introduced, if passed, it would impact Shelters and 
Law Enforcement. This could force Humane Societies into a 5-day holding period for strays. If there is a dog bite 
history it would create documentation from the Police Department to be provided to the holding shelter. The 
entire state would have a decision if the animal would be killed or not. No Kill members could accept the 
animals being re-released back into the community. CML is currently opposed but is waiting for amendments. 
Could affect the health and safety of the community if an aggressive animal is in the community.  
 
Mayor Banks called the regular meeting of the Hayden Town Council to order at 7:30 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem 
Reese and Councilmembers Gann, Hicks, Bell and Carlson present.  Also present were Town Manager, Mathew 
Mendisco, Police Chief, Greg Tuliszewski, Public Works Director, Bryan Richards, Community Development 
Director, Tegan Ebbert, Finance Manager, Andrea Salazar, Utility Clerk, Chistie Haight, Hayden Center 
Recreation Director, Rhonda Sweetser, and Hayden Center Arts and Events Director, Sarah Stinson. 
 

COUNCILMEMBER 
REPORT AND UPDATE 
 
 
OPENING PRAYER 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
 
 
Mayor Banks offered a moment of silence. 

  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Mayor Banks led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  
PUBLIC COMMENTS None 
  
PROCLAMATIONS/ 
PRESENTATIONS 

None 

  
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
Consideration of minutes 
for the Regular Meeting – 
January 18, 2024 
 
Consideration of bill 

Councilmember Hicks moved to approve the consent items with the correction of 
the names in from the January 18, 2024 minutes.  Councilmember Carlson 
seconded. Roll call vote. Councilmember Carlson– aye. Councilmember Hicks– aye. 
Councilmember - Gann aye. Councilmember Bell– aye. Mayor Pro Tem Reese – aye. 
Mayor Banks – aye. Motion carried. 



Regular Meeting                                 Hayden Town Council                                              February 1, 2024 
 

Draft minutes subject to editing and approval prior to becoming official record. 
 Page 3 of 4  

 
 

payment voucher – 
January  25 , 2024 in the 
amount of $423,871.08 
 
Consideration of bill 
payment voucher – 
January  26, 2024 in the 
amount of $44,480.31 
 
Consideration to appoint 
Derek Martin to the 
Hayden Economic 
Development Commission 
with a two-year term 
  
OLD BUSINESS None 
  
NEW BUSINESS  
 
Final Plat-Prairie Run 
Subdivision 
 
Public Hearing: Prairie 
Run Final Plat, a 135 
residential unit subdivision 
development of 23.2 
acres in the Commercial 
(C) Zone District spread 
across a mixture of two-
story multifamily and 
townhome buildings and 
8.2 acres of area 
dedicated to future 
commercial and mixed-
use development 

Lindsay Newman from Norris Design presented final report prior to building 
permits. Lot 7 is set aside for a potential park. The design includes a walking 
pollinator path. They were able to provide open space for the neighborhood as well 
as the community. Utilizing clusters of trees to free up space for snow storage. 
 
Jennifer Henninger with Community Planning Strategies presented the power point 
regrading 1300 W Jefferson Ave the proposed Prairie Run site. Final plat criteria were 
reviewed with Town Council including a legal address and conformance with a 
preliminary plan. Access to the new park from the property will need rectified prior 
to final plat. All 5 preliminary plan conditions were met. Prairie run is compliance 
with the Town of Hayden Development Code. Final Plat conforms to Town technical 
standards regarding drainage, utility easements, etc.  
 
Councilmember Carlson asked about lot 7 and CDOT being able to take away 
existing access. She is requesting how existing access may not be obtained. The 
Town will need to obtain an access permit. The use is changing so the access needs 
to be reevaluated. Per CDOT existing access points may no longer be used when 
there is an increase over 20% of traffic flow. CDOT prefers all highway access points 
align with an existing entrance. Councilmember Hicks asked if the traffic study would 
have any impact on the Poplar intersection. Town Manager Mendisco replied, no, 
the Poplar St. traffic study does not affect the traffic study near Prairie Run and 
Pinyon Pines estates. Traffic studies do try to factor in the next 20 years of potential 
growth so there is a review, but on a broader level.  
Councilmember Bell asked why natural gas was not included in this plan. Kimball 
responded with it was not included due to the requirements from DOLA (grant 
funding). There are many advances in electrical and HVAC systems to improve 
efficiency. Currently the State of Colorado is looking to transition to a more 
renewable grid and moving away from Natural Gas.  
 



Regular Meeting                                 Hayden Town Council                                              February 1, 2024 
 

Draft minutes subject to editing and approval prior to becoming official record. 
 Page 4 of 4  

 
 

Public Hearing opened at 8:21 pm 
Public comments: NONE 
Public Hearing closed at 8:22 pm 

 
Review and Consideration 
to Approve Prairie Run 
Final Plat, a 135 residential 
unit subdivision 
development of 23.2 
acres in the Commercial 
(C) Zone District spread 
across a mixture of two-
story multifamily and 
townhome buildings and 
8.2 acres of area 
dedicated to future 
commercial and mixed-
use development 

 
Mayor Banks moved to approve.  Mayor Pro Tem Reese seconded. Roll call vote. 
Councilmember Bell – aye. Councilmember Gann – aye. Councilmember Hicks - 
aye. Councilmember – Carlson aye. Mayor Pro Tem Reese – aye. Mayor Banks – 
aye. Motion carried. 
 
 

  
PULLED CONSENT ITEMS  
  
STAFF AND 
COUNCILMEMBER 
REPORTS AND UPDATES 
CONTINUED 

Town Manager Mendisco, working on the speed limit on the West end of Town. 
Mathew has a meeting regarding the street light at Poplar St vs an emergency 
signal. Hoping that in 2025 the Town will have money in our capital fund to pay 
for this. Submitted one of two grants for the Skate Park. We currently have approx. 
550k reserved already with the Town Continuing 100k.   Skate Park design has 
shifted due to the new location.  Hayden center will be fully completed at the end 
of February. Feb 15th legislative update. Mathew will be in attendance at CML. 
Working on an updated hotel study to determine viability and location.  

  
EXECUTIVE SESSION None 

  
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Banks adjourned the meeting at 8:38 p.m. 

 
Recorded by:       _____________________________ 
        Andrea Salazar, Deputy Town Clerk 
APPROVED THIS 15st DAY OF February 2024. 
 
__________________________________ 
Ryan Banks, Mayor 



Town of Hayden Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page:     1

Report dates: 2/6/2024-2/6/2024 Feb 07, 2024  09:50AM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Date Paid Voided

Invoice Amount

12696 AT&T Mobility 287293429932 Sewer - Cell Phone 01/20/2024 106.71

12696 AT&T Mobility 287293429932 Streets - Cell Phone 01/20/2024 266.14

12696 AT&T Mobility 287293429932 Water - Cell Phone 01/20/2024 111.61

12696 AT&T Mobility 287293429932 Admin - Cell Phone 01/20/2024 245.35

12696 AT&T Mobility 287293429932 HC Cell Phones 01/20/2024 147.21

12696 AT&T Mobility 287293441320 PD - Cell Phone 01/20/2024 262.98

          Total 12696: 1,140.00

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 Sewer Benefits 01/30/2024 3,501.80

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 Streets Benefits 01/30/2024 6,652.99

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 Water Benefits 01/30/2024 4,304.33

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 Parks Benefits 01/30/2024 2,704.75

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 HC Benefits 01/30/2024 12,907.95

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 Sewer Admin Benefits 01/30/2024 2,031.80

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 Water Admin Benefit 01/30/2024 2,031.80

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 Admin Benefits 01/30/2024 6,155.42

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 Planning Benefits 01/30/2024 1,594.38

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 PD Benefits 01/30/2024 14,081.17

1650 CEBT INV 0063049 Leg Benefits 01/30/2024 2,702.49

          Total 1650: 58,668.88

3770 CenturyLink 2067JAN2024 Dry Creek Lift Phone 9702762067  01/19/2024 31.00

3770 CenturyLink 2559JAN2024 West End Phone 9702762559 417 01/19/2024 35.39

3770 CenturyLink 5703JAN2024 Water Phones_3058 01/16/2024 38.07

3770 CenturyLink 5703JAN2024 Streets Phones_3840 01/16/2024 76.27

3770 CenturyLink 5703JAN2024 Sewer Phones_4330 01/16/2024 38.07

          Total 3770: 218.80

1645 Charter Communications 172669201010 PD TV 172669201 01/07/2024 22.82

          Total 1645: 22.82

13225 GreatAmerica Financial Services  35805776 TH - Copier Lease 01/26/2024 294.80

          Total 13225: 294.80

12828 Luminate Fiber LLC 1201FEB2024 3001061201 HPD Broadband 02/01/2024 138.90

12828 Luminate Fiber LLC 4701FEB2024 3001154701 - Loadout Utilities 02/01/2024 73.85

12828 Luminate Fiber LLC 6301FEB2024 3001106301 Hayden Center Broa 02/01/2024 258.90

          Total 12828: 471.65

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB Sewer LTD 01/17/2024 76.82

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB STREETS LTD 01/17/2024 205.63

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB WATER LTD 01/17/2024 105.42

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB HC LTD 01/17/2024 251.58

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB PARKS LTD 01/17/2024 63.55

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB SWR ADM LTD 01/17/2024 49.64

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB WTR ADM LTD 01/17/2024 49.64



Town of Hayden Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page:     2

Report dates: 2/6/2024-2/6/2024 Feb 07, 2024  09:50AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Date Paid Voided

Invoice Amount

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB ADMIN LTD 01/17/2024 151.79

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB PD LTD 01/17/2024 308.93

1655 STANDARD INSURANCE COMP 00 750748 FEB PLNG LTD 01/17/2024 42.00

          Total 1655: 1,305.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW - Amazon 01/23/2024 98.40

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Apple 01/23/2024 2.99

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Gravity House Mtn Rail Tr 01/23/2024 381.42

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Fitness Balls, Basketballs 01/23/2024 453.99

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Fitness Mats 01/23/2024 51.99

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin -  Hook & Harvest Mtn Rail 01/23/2024 24.90

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Gravity Haus Refund Mtn  01/23/2024 38.42-

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Hyatt Mountain Rail Mtng 01/23/2024 24.25

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Hyatt Mountain Rail Mtng 01/23/2024 139.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Canva - Annual Subscription 01/23/2024 119.99

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Fuel 01/23/2024 20.07

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Creek View 01/23/2024 38.97

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Amazon 01/23/2024 49.50

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW - Flower Truck Repair 01/23/2024 370.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW - Frentress Water Test 01/23/2024 50.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW - Creek View Water Break Me 01/23/2024 92.81

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW - Harbor Freight Water Main B 01/23/2024 108.98

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW - Harbor Freight Shop Tools 01/23/2024 163.89

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW  - iPhone Chargers 01/23/2024 37.52

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW - AWWA Water Education Mat 01/23/2024 261.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW - Trenchless Waterline Tool 01/23/2024 1,555.08

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN .ORG Domain Renewal 01/23/2024 23.17

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PD - Certified Mail 01/23/2024 5.01

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PW - Water Samples Postage 01/23/2024 3.55

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Mailchimp 01/23/2024 52.50

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Labor Law Posters 01/23/2024 119.40

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Postage 01/23/2024 132.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN TC Joint Dinner with Hayden RE- 01/23/2024 319.19

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Refund Lodging Caselle 01/23/2024 256.14-

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Admin - Office Supplies 01/23/2024 65.10

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Apps 4 Rent - Email License Ren 01/23/2024 1,008.04

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Zoom Annual License 01/23/2024 326.48

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Laundry Detergent 01/23/2024 79.50

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Phones Nextiva 01/23/2024 190.09

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Office Supplies 01/23/2024 51.11

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PD - Uniform Stocking Caps 01/23/2024 99.05

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Background Check 01/23/2024 4.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Background Check 01/23/2024 4.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Background Check 01/23/2024 4.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Background Check 01/23/2024 4.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Vacuum, Filters and Coat Ra 01/23/2024 407.67

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Brother Copier Ink 01/23/2024 261.14

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Plexiglass Frame Holders 01/23/2024 260.97

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Posters 01/23/2024 203.40

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Fitness Towels 01/23/2024 196.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Cornhole Bags 01/23/2024 78.58

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Cornhole Bags 01/23/2024 28.99

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN HC - Phones Nextiva Credit 01/23/2024 17.66-

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PD - Creek View,  Judge/Court Cl 01/23/2024 80.52

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PD - When I Work 01/23/2024 80.00

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PD - Office Desk Riser 01/23/2024 109.60



Town of Hayden Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page:     3

Report dates: 2/6/2024-2/6/2024 Feb 07, 2024  09:50AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Date Paid Voided

Invoice Amount

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PD - 2023 Federal Court Rules 01/23/2024 105.72

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN Reimb Travel Fraud 01/23/2024 313.04-

8740 Visa 09802607 JAN PD - Foreign Transaction Fee Fra 01/23/2024 .40

          Total 8740: 7,722.67

13086 Vital Records Holding, LLC 3917871GJT1 PD - Document Shredding 11/30/2023 50.00

13086 Vital Records Holding, LLC 3984153GJT1 PD - Document Shredding 12/31/2023 57.66

          Total 13086: 107.66

13061 Xerox Financial Services 5231653 TH - Copier Lease 01/01/2024 245.43

13061 Xerox Financial Services 5324311 HC - Copier Lease 01/14/2024 186.36

          Total 13061: 431.79

4010 Yampa Valley Electric 1802JAN2024 1510001802 Street Lights 01/30/2024 3,238.23

4010 Yampa Valley Electric 8003JAN2024 750008003 Hayden Center 01/30/2024 305.58

          Total 4010: 3,543.81

4245 Zirkel Wireless, LLC 261180 Acct 4378 internet 02/01/2024 99.00

4245 Zirkel Wireless, LLC 261207 Acct 4377 internet 02/01/2024 79.00

          Total 4245: 178.00

          Grand Totals:  74,105.88

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.



Town of Hayden Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page:     1

Report dates: 2/8/2024-2/8/2024 Feb 12, 2024  11:01AM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Date Paid Voided

Invoice Amount

7550 ALERT/SAM MARCH2024 2024 Membership 02/08/2024 100.00

          Total 7550: 100.00

12379 Axon Enterprises, Inc INUS221658 PD - 6 x In Car Digital Cameras 01/20/2024 16,329.60

          Total 12379: 16,329.60

1200 Bear River Valley Co-Op JAN2024 Admin Fuel 01/25/2024 50.05

1200 Bear River Valley Co-Op JAN2024 Streets Vehicle Expense 01/25/2024 1,474.57

1200 Bear River Valley Co-Op JAN2024 Streets - Snow Removal 01/25/2024 3,830.07

1200 Bear River Valley Co-Op JAN2024 Parks - Vehicle Exp 01/25/2024 421.36

1200 Bear River Valley Co-Op JAN2024 Parks - Trails 01/25/2024 37.05

1200 Bear River Valley Co-Op JAN2024 Water vehicle exp - fuel 01/25/2024 279.03

1200 Bear River Valley Co-Op JAN2024 Sewer Vehicle Expense 01/25/2024 236.08

1200 Bear River Valley Co-Op JAN2024 PD Vehicle Expense 01/25/2024 843.21

          Total 1200: 7,171.42

7900 Browns Hill Engineering & 1227 SCADA Lease - Mar 02/01/2024 2,338.00

          Total 7900: 2,338.00

1400 Caselle Inc 130642 Admin 02/01/2024 758.40

1400 Caselle Inc 130642 Water Admin 02/01/2024 379.20

1400 Caselle Inc 130642 Sewer Admin 02/01/2024 379.20

1400 Caselle Inc 130642 Hayden Center 02/01/2024 379.20

          Total 1400: 1,896.00

1410 CASH 06FEB2024 ISS Cornhole Prize Money 02/06/2024 1,280.00

          Total 1410: 1,280.00

13329 Chenoweth, Julie 2024-2-5-24-C Yampa Valley Community Fund Fl 02/05/2024 2,530.89

          Total 13329: 2,530.89

13106 Column Software PBC 315EBC08-008 Engineering RFQ 01/24/2024 46.18

          Total 13106: 46.18

13066 Community Planning Strategies, L 2023-0230 Professional Services 01/10/2024 1,081.55

13066 Community Planning Strategies, L 2023-0230 Prairie Run Prelim 01/10/2024 3,051.53

          Total 13066: 4,133.08

1870 Consolidated Electrical Dist 1534-1029369 Downtown Light Bulbs 01/29/2024 62.22

1870 Consolidated Electrical Dist 1534-1029369 TK Bathroom Light 01/29/2024 34.56

1870 Consolidated Electrical Dist 1534-1029480 Street Light Pole Repair 01/30/2024 818.91



Town of Hayden Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page:     2

Report dates: 2/8/2024-2/8/2024 Feb 12, 2024  11:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Date Paid Voided

Invoice Amount

          Total 1870: 915.69

13167 Dex Imaging AR10762130 HC - Copier 1/1-1/31/2024 02/06/2024 73.64

          Total 13167: 73.64

9000 Dowling Land Surveyors 02FEB2024WA Washington to S 3rd 02/05/2024 480.00

9000 Dowling Land Surveyors 05FEB2024 Walker Ditch Dry Creek Crossing  02/05/2024 1,380.00

          Total 9000: 1,860.00

13196 ETG Systems, Inc 5242735 HC - 24 Hour Access Cards 01/09/2024 525.00

          Total 13196: 525.00

4890 FedEx 8-395-08537 Water Sample Shipping 02/01/2024 121.79

          Total 4890: 121.79

12771 Fones Construction LLC 222128 Snow Removal 01/27/2024 5,590.00

          Total 12771: 5,590.00

12773 Freedom Mailing Services 47052 Utility Billing 01/27/2024 232.52

12773 Freedom Mailing Services 47052 Utility Billing 01/27/2024 232.53

          Total 12773: 465.05

13209 Friends of Perry Mansfield Inc FALL2023 Oct/Nov Dance Instruction 11/09/2023 6,400.00

          Total 13209: 6,400.00

13324 Government Finance Officers Ass 2326107 GFOA Annual Membership Dues 01/31/2024 160.00

          Total 13324: 160.00

12451 Grand Junction Winwater Compa 072751 01 Distribution Inventory 01/17/2024 798.26

          Total 12451: 798.26

12873 Green Building Initiative 15243 Hayden Center Design Review 01/19/2024 6,000.00

          Total 12873: 6,000.00

12761 Hayden Granary LLC 07FEB2024 US 40 Sidewalk Easement Reimb 02/07/2024 2,000.00

          Total 12761: 2,000.00

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1796986 PW - Nuts/Bolts 01/06/2024 4.99

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1797969 PD - Adhesive Remover for #717  01/08/2024 11.99

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1798570 HC - New Door Numbers 01/09/2024 303.36

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1798729 PW - Dust Masks 01/09/2024 6.99

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1799800 PW - Table Saw 01/11/2024 649.99

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1802332 PW - Nuts/Bolts 01/15/2024 5.50

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1802438 PW - Soldering Torch 01/15/2024 9.99

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1803360 HC - Acetone 01/16/2024 11.99



Town of Hayden Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page:     3

Report dates: 2/8/2024-2/8/2024 Feb 12, 2024  11:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Date Paid Voided

Invoice Amount

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1803762 PW - Duct Tape 01/17/2024 8.99

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1807852 PW - 309 Harvest Curbstop R&M 01/24/2024 30.55

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1807858 PW - Coffee, Paper Towels 01/24/2024 87.92

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1807968 PW - Nuts/Bolts 01/24/2024 1.89

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1810514 Parks - JCP Cleaning Supplies 01/29/2024 18.58

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1810641 HC - Self Tapping Screws 01/29/2024 9.79

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1810898 PW - Ice Busters at Parks 01/29/2024 24.99

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1811369 HC - Bleacher, TK Key Copies 01/30/2024 29.90

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1811920 PW - Kum & Go Street Light Repa 01/31/2024 5.59

2580 Hayden Merc 01-1812109 PW - Brushes 01/31/2024 28.98

2580 Hayden Merc 0-1811997 PW - Kum & Go Street Light Repa 01/31/2024 7.99

2580 Hayden Merc 02-1791050 HC - Water Heater Repair 01/03/2024 1.49

2580 Hayden Merc 02-1791645 PW - Gloves, Distribution Repair 3 01/04/2024 37.98

2580 Hayden Merc 02-1793671 HC - Ice Melt Spreder, Brooom 01/08/2024 129.96

2580 Hayden Merc 02-1797488 PW - Icemelt Bucket 01/15/2024 11.58

2580 Hayden Merc 02-1798123 HPR - Meeting Snacks 01/16/2024 35.97

2580 Hayden Merc 02-1805266 PW - Parks Cleaning Supplies 01/30/2024 72.54

2580 Hayden Merc 02-1805791 HH Sample Station Hose Bib 01/31/2024 14.99

2580 Hayden Merc 02-1805904 PW - Kum & Go Street Light Repa 01/31/2024 36.79

2580 Hayden Merc 03-1716402 PW - Gas Cans for Shop 01/04/2024 109.96

2580 Hayden Merc 03-1725259 PW - Heat Shrink Lighter 01/24/2024 5.59

2580 Hayden Merc 03-1725372 PW - Self Tapper Screws 01/25/2024 16.99

2580 Hayden Merc 03-1727903 HC - Door Paint 01/31/2024 35.53

          Total 2580: 1,769.34

12768 Hayden Rental & Repair 2930 PW - 309 Harvest Curbstop Repai 01/22/2024 686.48

          Total 12768: 686.48

13325 HSG, LLC PINV0003043 PD - Equipment Pouches for Oute 01/25/2024 682.77

          Total 13325: 682.77

5890 IntelliChoice, Inc. 1232974 PD - Digital Traffic Ticketing 02/02/2024 15,760.00

          Total 5890: 15,760.00

12109 Jim Haskins JAN2024 Town Hall Cleaning 02/04/2024 200.00

          Total 12109: 200.00

13320 Kimball Midwest 101842986 PW - Cleaning & Penetrating Oil 01/23/2024 40.11

          Total 13320: 40.11

13326 Lewis, James 398.01-2023 Reimburse Regular vs Senior Rat 02/05/2024 526.20

          Total 13326: 526.20

13308 LN Curtis and Sons INV763129 PD - Short Sleeve Uniforms 11/08/2023 270.41

13308 LN Curtis and Sons INV765383 Uniform Shipping 11/16/2023 23.94

13308 LN Curtis and Sons INV784597 PD - Cossey Uniform Shirts 01/23/2024 112.77

13308 LN Curtis and Sons INV785016 PD - Cossey Uniform Shirts 01/24/2024 94.55

          Total 13308: 501.67



Town of Hayden Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page:     4

Report dates: 2/8/2024-2/8/2024 Feb 12, 2024  11:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Date Paid Voided

Invoice Amount

8375 MASON SIEDSCHLAW 2588 PD - Monthly Cloud Server 02/01/2024 317.00

8375 MASON SIEDSCHLAW 2589 HC - Inernet Subscription Renewa 02/06/2024 416.00

          Total 8375: 733.00

8920 Murdoch's Ranch & Home Craig INV 5072148 PW - Hockaday, T Clothing 01/13/2024 114.99

8920 Murdoch's Ranch & Home Craig INV-4873149 PW - Frentress Clothing 01/02/2024 229.98

8920 Murdoch's Ranch & Home Craig INV-4968694 PW - Case Clothing 01/07/2024 215.97

8920 Murdoch's Ranch & Home Craig INV-5246247 PW - Richards Clothing 01/24/2024 116.24

          Total 8920: 677.18

4060 Murray Dahl Beery & Renaud LLP 18415 Speical Council Review 02/05/2024 2,617.47

4060 Murray Dahl Beery & Renaud LLP 18416 Municipal Prosecution 02/05/2024 702.00

          Total 4060: 3,319.47

4080 Northwest CO Consultants Inc 23-13181-01 5th & Sage Creek Soil Testig 11/14/2023 996.40

          Total 4080: 996.40

13256 PDS INC AR78465 PD - Copier 02/09/2024 55.45

13256 PDS INC AR78466 PW - Copier 02/09/2024 12.72

          Total 13256: 68.17

1350 Pinnacol Assurance 21560337 PD Work Comp # 10207287 01/22/2024 213.48

          Total 1350: 213.48

13197 Reese, Robert 12FEB2024 Boom Lift Purchase 02/12/2024 14,000.00

          Total 13197: 14,000.00

13213 Routt County Humane Society Inc 205335 365 E Lincoln Animal Impound 01/18/2024 4,320.00

          Total 13213: 4,320.00

13300 Royer, Erica 2024-2-5-2024 Yampa Valley Community Fund Fl 02/05/2024 6,919.00

          Total 13300: 6,919.00

7090 Samuelson's - Craig 281684 HC - Squat Rack Boards 01/23/2024 73.46

          Total 7090: 73.46

1770 Schmueser Gordon Meyer, Inc. 2022-268.001- Northwest Business Park NEPA 01/25/2024 340.00

          Total 1770: 340.00

13298 Soroka, Alicia 2024-2-5-24-P Yampa Valley Community Flood R 02/05/2024 13,999.45

          Total 13298: 13,999.45

13327 Southern Tire Mart LLC 5390014600 PW - Truck #5 Tires 01/31/2024 544.12



Town of Hayden Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page:     5

Report dates: 2/8/2024-2/8/2024 Feb 12, 2024  11:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Date Paid Voided

Invoice Amount

          Total 13327: 544.12

12727 Stand Creative Studio 4121 Website Hosting 02/01/2024 150.00

          Total 12727: 150.00

10930 Standard Plumbing Supply Co. WFBW68 Parks - Bathroom Updates for Cle 01/30/2024 280.73

          Total 10930: 280.73

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 134646 PD - Adhesive for decal removal o 01/08/2024 22.78

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 137771 Return Shop Towels 01/11/2024 104.93-

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437432 Seneca Generator 01/02/2024 189.99

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437439 F350 Battery @ Race Track 01/02/2024 189.99

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437452 Flower Truck Repair 01/02/2024 132.55

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437476 Starter Fluid 01/03/2024 7.19

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437490 Flower Truck Repair 01/03/2024 22.66

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437523 Flower Truck Repair 01/04/2024 69.76

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437543 PW - Wheel Hub Spindle Tool 01/04/2024 20.99

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437544 PW - Spindle Nut Wrench 01/04/2024 5.00

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437553 PW - Face Shield 01/04/2024 51.78

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437637 Snocat Block Heater 01/08/2024 106.99

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437639 Snocat Coolant 01/08/2024 33.87

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437658 Seneca Hill Starter 01/08/2024 325.35

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437685 PW - Def 140AWD 01/09/2024 31.98

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437766 Snocat Plugs 01/11/2024 8.41

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437770 PW - Shop Towels 01/11/2024 119.92

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437939 PW - Dump Truck Fuses 01/16/2024 26.74

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 437955 PW - Dump Truck Wiring 01/16/2024 17.76

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438005 Return Seneca Starter 01/17/2024 151.30-

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438036 PW  - Truck #10 Fuel Filter & Fuel  01/18/2024 42.98

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438081 PW - F250 & JD Tractor Wipers &  01/19/2024 74.20

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438180 HC - Heat Repair 01/23/2024 27.15

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438203 PW - Air Filters, Rags 01/23/2024 143.45

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438205 PW - Truck #8 Bulbs 01/23/2024 13.78

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438378 PW - Snow Machine Oil 01/29/2024 44.99

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438466 PW - Truck #1 Battery 01/31/2024 249.99

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438467 WWTP Generator Radiator 01/31/2024 119.55

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438483 WWTP Generator Radiator 01/31/2024 162.67

12494 Steamboat Springs Auto Parts, In 438484 PD - #719 Oil & Filter 01/31/2024 81.97

          Total 12494: 2,088.21

13328 Stinson, Sarah 26JAN2024 Arts Travel Reimbursement 01/26/2024 55.02

          Total 13328: 55.02

13048 Stuart Stamp & Engraving, LLC INV-58645 Council Nameplates 01/30/2024 75.83

          Total 13048: 75.83

13182 Sunflower Persepective LLC 83385915 Rental Furniture Storage 02/01/2024 150.00

13182 Sunflower Persepective LLC 83387205 HC - Storage 02/01/2024 150.00

          Total 13182: 300.00



Town of Hayden Payment Approval Report - Hayden Vendor Name Page:     6

Report dates: 2/8/2024-2/8/2024 Feb 12, 2024  11:01AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Date Paid Voided

Invoice Amount

12634 Sunrise Engineering, Inc. 0140640 Prairie Run Development Review 02/06/2024 2,685.53

12634 Sunrise Engineering, Inc. 0140640 General Engineering 02/06/2024 2,374.00

12634 Sunrise Engineering, Inc. 0140641 Washington St Extension Study 02/06/2024 3,269.00

          Total 12634: 8,328.53

13190 Trey Steven Mullen JAN2024 Media/Communications 02/08/2024 2,000.00

          Total 13190: 2,000.00

9545 U.S. Tractor & Harvest, Inc. P80157 JD Tractor Plow Attachments 01/29/2024 464.36

9545 U.S. Tractor & Harvest, Inc. P80158 Z Track Hitch 01/29/2024 46.01

          Total 9545: 510.37

12864 UNCC 224010714 Locates 01/31/2024 9.03

          Total 12864: 9.03

7070 USA BlueBook INV00263364 WTP Chlorine Test 01/31/2024 515.32

          Total 7070: 515.32

3880 Wagner Equipment Co P04C0342337 PW - Loader Light Bulb 01/16/2024 185.09

3880 Wagner Equipment Co P04C0342338 PW - Backhoe Light 01/16/2024 167.09

3880 Wagner Equipment Co P04C0342445 PW - Loader Blade 01/20/2024 53.33

3880 Wagner Equipment Co P04C0342446 PW - John Deer Plow Hoses 01/20/2024 89.72

          Total 3880: 495.23

9960 Warning, Tanya JAN2024 Janitorial Services 01/31/2024 200.00

          Total 9960: 200.00

10600 Waste Management-SBS #001-85 JAN2024 Residential Trash Service 01/31/2024 26,516.85

          Total 10600: 26,516.85

13286 Wilcox, Desiree 2024-2-5-2024 YVCF Flood Relief 02/05/2024 8,400.00

          Total 13286: 8,400.00

12261 Yampa Valley Brewing Company  JUN-DEC2024 Q3 & Q4 2023 Final Sales Tax Inc 01/17/2024 989.49

          Total 12261: 989.49

13231 Yeh & Associates, Inc 222-055-9 Hwy 40 Sidewalks #9 02/06/2024 10,926.00

          Total 13231: 10,926.00

          Grand Totals:  188,945.51



 

178 West Jefferson Avenue · PO Box 190 · Hayden, CO 81639-0190 
970-276-3741·Fax 970-276-3644 

www.haydencolorado.com 

 
Town of Hayden 

 
Town Council 

 
MEETING DATE:  February 15, 2024 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Appointments to Hayden Planning Commission   
 
i.  Recommendation to Re-Appointment of Michele Lewis to the Hayden Planning Commission as 

a Regular Member for a term expiring 1/31/2029.    
  
ii.  Recommendation to Appointment of Charlie Cook to the Hayden Planning Commission as a 

Regular Member for a term expiring 1/31/2028.   
 
iii.  Recommendation to Appointment of David “Mo” Demorat to the Hayden Planning Commission 

as an Alternate Member for a term expiring 1/31/2027. 
 
AGENDA SECTION:  Consent Agenda  
 
PRESENTED BY: Tegan Ebbert, Community Development Director.   
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED:  Not preferred.   
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: The Hayden Planning Commission has had several vacancies due to members 
leaving for various reasons. Both Charlie Cook and David “Mo” Demorat are applying as new Planning 
Commission Members. Town Staff has spoken to both applicants and feels they will be good additions 
to the commission. Both have letters of interest as attachments to this packet.    
 
Michele Lewis was appointed to the Hayden Planning Commission in 2018 and her term expired on 
1/31/2024. She has requested to be reappointed to Planning Commission.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
i. Move to approve the re-appointment of Michele Lewis to the Hayden Planning Commission as a 
Regular Member for a term expiring 1/31/2029.  
 
ii. Move to approve the appointment of Charlie Cook to the Hayden Planning Commission as a Regular 
Member for a term expiring 1/31/2028. 
 
iii. Move to approve the appointment of David “Mo” Demorat to the Hayden Planning Commission as an 
alternate Member for a term expiring 1/31/2027. 
 
MANAGER RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:  I concur with the recommendation. 



 

 

Charlie Cook 

 

SnowSports Manager 

173 s 6th street. 

Hayden, CO 81639 

970-388-3557 

Ccook@steamboat.com 

 

     

 
February, 2nd 2024 

   Dear Hayden Planning Commission:  

 

It didn’t take me long to fall in love with the Yampa Valley. Like so 

many folks, initially I was here to chase the snow, working seasonal 

jobs and never quite sure what the next year would hold. Before I 

knew it though the power days became less important, and it was 

the people and the community around me that kept me coming 

back.  

 

My wife and I moved from Steamboat to Hayden a few years back 

and quickly realized this was where we wanted to put down roots, 

this is where we wanted to raise a family. There’s something special 

about our little town, seeing your neighbor at the Merc or running 

into friends at the brewery. In the few years since we moved here it 

seems like every year something new and exciting is coming to 

town. I would jump at the opportunity to be part of Hayden’s story 

and to help our community and neighbors grow and prosper . 

 

  If you have questions, or if you want to schedule an interview, 

please contact me at 970-388-3557 or ccook@steamboat.com 

 

  Sincerely, Charlie Cook 

   

 

 



February 7, 2024 

Tegan Ebbert 

Tegan.ebbert@haydencolorado.org 

970-276-3741 ext. 14 

 

Dear Tegan 

I am Mo DeMorat, a resident of Hayden and the Emergency Operations Director for Routt County.  I am 

also a retired Marine Corps officer, serving over 23 years active duty.  I am writing to express my interest 

in serving on the Hayden Planning Commission. 

As a resident of Hayden, with a grandchild in the day care at the Hayden Community Center and a child 

in Hayden High School, I see the potential growth of the Town and recognize the need to plan for this 

growth responsibly.  This growth will place increased demands on services such as education and day 

care, requiring these services to grow commensurate with the increased demand.  As evidenced in 

previous debates on multifamily housing units being developed in Hayden to meet the significant 

housing crisis in Routt County, it is clear that an acceptable solution requires responsible planning. 

As the Emergency Operations Director for Routt County, I am responsible for preparing and responding 

to any major emergency or disaster that occurs in the County.  This requires extensive planning, 

including hazard analysis and hazard mitigation plans, capability and vulnerability analyses, and the 

development of a family of emergency response and recovery plans.  The increased growth in Hayden 

will affect these analyses and response plans.  Responsible planning requires consideration of the 

wildfire and flooding hazards and the best methods to mitigate these hazards, including landscaping and 

building codes, identification and update of flood zones and drainage systems, ensuring adequate 

evacuation routes throughout the County and Town to allow residents to safely and expeditiously 

displace away from a hazardous situation, and hardening critical infrastructure to increase its resilience 

in the presence of the most likely hazards the Town may experience.  In my capacity as Plans and Policy 

Committee Chair to the Routt County Wildfire Mitigation Council I have worked closely with the 

Regional Building Department and Routt County Planning Department for the development and 

implementation of Wildland Urban Interface (WUI) building codes and the Unified Development Code 

currently under development. 

With my planning experience and my desire to see the Town of Hayden grow responsibly and continue 

to provide essential services and the quality of life expected by its residents, I believe I can provide value 

to the Planning Commission and I look forward to the opportunity to contribute to the team’s success. 

Respectfully 

 

David “Mo” DeMorat 

ddemorat@msn.com 

858-254-2938 

mailto:Tegan.ebbert@haydencolorado.org
mailto:ddemorat@msn.com


 

178 West Jefferson Avenue · PO Box 190 · Hayden, CO 81639-0190 
970-276-3741·Fax 970-276-3644 

www.haydencolorado.com 

 
Town of Hayden 

 
Town Council Agenda Item 

 
MEETING DATE:  February 15th, 2024 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Review and Consider Approval of Facilitation Contract with the Steadman Group 
LLC 
 
AGENDA SECTION:  New Business 
 
PRESENTED BY: Mathew Mendisco  
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: Yes, but not recommended 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:  The Region 1 Opioid Council has approved a contract for facilitation with the 
Steadman Group LLC which is a widely known company that has helped across the State with Opioid 
planning and recovery. The Town is the fiscal agent for the region so this must be approved by Council.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve the Contract with the Steadman Group LLC as presented.  
 
 
MANAGER RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:  I concur with this recommendation  



����������	�
�	�����	��������������������������	��
�	�����	��������������������������������������  !�"���#�$�% &'()'*+�,-,.�/��0��1������234�25�6789:4+���;$<$=��$��$���=><���>1���?�<��$=?$=���$1�@A�$01AB+��1��CDE�FGEHIJHK�LMNOP�@Q;$1�><��1�RBST��������UVW1�$1����=���$1$�����>�>�<�$��1�1���1��X=����1����=��1�$1���1��+���?�=������=��$�X=�����$<<$0�YZS[�$?�$�7X=����1�S;$1�><��1��X=����$?=$�����$1�><��1X��=�����+���$=��><<#���1�������1������������\��/���+�1��1#0$=]$=��=��>/��̂>�1�<#�>��$=�_��/#+�1��$=����$01$�6�#��1+;$<$=��$S,S;$1����=���$1S����$01�X=����$�$�?�1����;$1�><��1��$=��������1���=������1�1��$>1�������/<�����0����1��� =̀$�����$1�<a��>/�����<�$=�����$?�$�0$=]��������+�1�0$=]$=��=��>/��̂>�1�<#�>��$=�_��@���Q3$=]RBS3$=]���<</�?�=�$=���/����$1�����$?����1�������1:\��/��7+�1��$�?�1�����$1���/����$������1��\?�1���0���=���=�1���$:\��/��b@c���[����><�B>1<���$���=0����>��$=�_��S;$1�><��1���#��d>�����=�����11>�<<#+�$1�����1�0���������1��=�=�������=X���$$���=�<��1���$=����<�=0$=]0������?$�ef�1�=����?�=#��=>1<���1�X$�������1����1��0�������$01S7<<0$=]���<</��??=$���/#����$01?=�$=�$�1�>==�1X�$���$1�?=$d���S����$01���<<?�#��$>1���>�?>=�>�1��$�����$?�$�0$=]+$=�1#0$=]$=��=��>/��̂>�1�<#�>��$=�_��+0����1e-��#�$�����$01a�=����?�$��1�1�$�����<���=��/#;$1�><��1�SW1������1�����$01���<��$?�#��$>1��$0��0����1e-��#�$����=����?�$��1�1�$���+���$>����1��1X��$>1��$0��?>=�>�1��$�>���1�$���0�<<���=>��1��=������=���$����<����=$�Zgf?�=�11>��1����X=��������$>1��<<$0�/<�>1��=�??<���/<�<$��<+������1�����=�<<�0SeS��=��1�c�1�0�<S����7X=����1����<</������������$��������$�����\��>��$1/#/$��?�=�����1����<<�\��1��$=�$1�h#��=?�=�$�+0������$?��$1�$=�1�0�1������$1�<$1�h#��=?�=�$��+>1<�����=<��=��=��1����?>=�>�1��$?�=�X=�?�Z,+�>/d����$�1��$1����$1��>?$1�11>�</>�X���1X/#����$01�$=;$1�><��1�a���=�����?>=�>�1��$[����$1i+/�<$0S[�$><�����$01���<�$/>�X���$=;$1�><��1�a���=������1�1#/>�X��#��=+���1����7X=����1����<<1$�=�1�0�1����<<�>�$������<<#��=��1���S����7X=����1���#�<�$/���=��1�������1#����?>=�>�1��$[����$1Z,+/�<$0Sjklmnopqnrrnsotuvwnuxnyz{|{}t~j��y����nu��|lj�����j����k���k���k�jy��~��k���k���������{����nu�t�ts��t{ts�

��������������� ��¡�¢�£¤¥¦¥§¦̈©¦�ª§©«¦�¬©§£®©̄¦̄§¥°°«¦®ª°



��������	
��������������������

�������������������	
�����������������������������������������
���	���������	�����	�������������������������
������ ���������	����
��������
����������������������������
�����!�"���������
#����	�� �

��������� ����	��������
$����	����
������������� ��%�	��

��������������������������������	�����	��	
�����

����������������"�
��������������������������
$����	����
���������������&�'������ �����
���������� ������	����
����������

�����	������������ 
������������������� �� ����(�'���������������������������	����  
	��
��������
����)�����	���

����		������������������	��������������
���
��	�������*

����	����� ���������
�����������	 
�� ��	�	�����
�����������
�����

��� �������������	�����������������������������������
	�� ��������+�,�������������
�������

��
�����
�������������������������������������������������������������������	���������������������������	
��-�	
������������
����������)�����	�������� �������������.������
����)���������	����
���������������� �	������	������ 
�������������� ��������	�������
��������������������	��/012345621789:;<=:2:7>8:57?6<578=><85=3=5@:?:819AB�CDEDFGDHDIGHDJKGLMNOPDKQKKLJRSTDJ0"������� ��������	����	�����	�������� ���������������������UV�W�������#�� ���
X���������
��������������

���YAA�����������

�����	����������������� 
�������  
	�������� 
��������	���������ZGL[RQLJDTOJILRKD\]TDSIDJGIDSLGLM]KD\QOFRJGDSLOLGRS]TDSDLĜK]JÔD]̂RFRJ]JDFGTGRS]SOLGRSOFRJGTGS]IGKOEGFGLM]_JRLD̂LDI D̀LDJOSKLOLQK]OTD]RJOSMRL[DĴ[OJÔLDJGKLĜ_JRLD̂LDIEMFOZ���������
������������ ����	��� 	���� 
�	������
��
����� 
���������  
	��������� 
����������	���������������� �����������������	�������	
�����Aa�������������

��
	�������������������������� 
����)� 
�	������������
��������������

�����������	������
��������W��
�  ��������� 
����������� �	�	
�������� ������ ��������bcdefghifjjfkglmnofmpfqrstsulvbwxqyz{|fm}~tdb��w�xbwx�wcx��c���c�bq�zv�wcx��c���������s�z{|fm�l�lkz|lslk�

��������������������������� �¡¢��£ ¢¤��¥¢ �¦§¢̈�̈ �©©¤�§£©



��������	
���	���
	�	��
��
�����������
����	����������	�����		����������	���	��������
�����			�	
������	�������	�����
	
���		������	�	����	�	��
�����

	������������
������
�����	�����������	������	���������	�����
���
����	��	�����
������
�������	
�������� �
	����	���������	�����	��	�	����!���	����������	�		����
���	�����������
���	��������
��
���	������	��	��������	
���������������	������	��	�����
������
�������	
�����!�	�	��	
�	����!���	�������	���	�����
���		�	������!�	�	�����	�	����"���������
��#��	�	
�����
��������	�
���
������������
�����	�	
���!���
	�������	$��$���	�	����		���������
��%���������!��������
	�!�����	���������	
��

���
��	���	��
��������	�������&�	&�����'�!	�������
��������%(��$�$� ���	)�	��
�������
������
������	��������	������	&���������
���	�	�����

�������*�#�
�����	����
����������!
��$���
������

���������������+	�
,����	�
���������������	��������!����	�	�����������!��
�����	���	���	�������	�
���	���������������������
-.	�	���/�������!$0��   �   �	�������	��	102�   �   ����	���	3���������	$0��   �   ������	
����	�����������'��	4���$���	��������
	35��+	�
����	�
�����6�������(���	(�������!/����
����
������
������
�������������	

�������������!��
�����	�������	���	�����
��770��   �   �	�������	��	10��   �   ����	���	77�&�	&�������
	����!		

�����	���	�
������������
��	��	���	�	�	�����������!�����!������
����
�	��������!��
��	���
������,
��	����!����������
���
��������	��	�	���(	�����8�����	�9�	�!�����!�	����	����	
�����	������!��
�����	�
����������������	���
���������������
��������
���	&�������
������	�
�	����!		
����	��
�����!��
�����	�����	�!��	&������
�����	�
���	����!		
�����	��

�����		)�	

����������������!��
�����	�����������	�!��	���
�������&�	����������
��		���
	�	��
��������������	)���
����������!��:��!������	��!����	���
������������	�	��	������
�&�	���
������
�����	
��	�!�	
���
���	�����!	������	��

	
��	�	�������	������	
�	����	����	��	��������	
����
�����	
�����	�����	�	�!��	���
������,
��
�����	��	���
	��	��	����������	
����������	�	����	���	���	
���������
���������������
��	����������	��	��	�����
�����	
��:	�����	��	������������!��	&����9����	��������	
���������	������	���	���	
�����	��	���	������	

��������	����	�	��	������	;<=>?@AB?CC?D@EFGH?FI?JKLMLNEO;PQJRSTU?FVWM=;XYPZQ;PQ[P<Q\]<XZY<̂;J_SO[P<Q\]<XZYX̂^`̀ L̀aSTU?FbEcEDSUELEDd

efghijklmnlopqfrpmsetmuvwxwyxz{xe|y{}xe~{yu��{�x�yw��}x�|�



�����������	
����������������������	������	�����������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������
������
������������
��
������������������������������
 ���������
������
����	����������
�����������
������
������������������������������!���������
�����
��������
��	����	����
	�����	�������������������"��������������������#��������������
�����������������
����������������!�����
��������
������������������������������
����������������������
�������$��������������
����������	����������	������������$������������������
��������	���
������������	��
�����
	�����%��������������������������������	��	��	����������������
����
���������������������������������	���������������������	#�������������������������������	���������
������������������������	�����������#����������������������������������������������������������������������	������������������������������������	��	���������������$������������������	��������������������	&'(�����������������&)����������

�����
������	����������������������������
��������������	���#�������*������������������	$
��+�
�����,-.'�.'�'����!��#�/�+���������������������������������������������������������������
����������	����'0�*������������������	1�$23/�4����������������������������������������������������������	������
�������������������������������������5,-.'�.'�'�����!��#�/�+����������������
�����
�������
��������������������������	���������6�	������������������
�����
��������
����������������.	��������
����������������������'7�8����	����+��
�����
�������$�������� ������������������������������
����!������������������'������$������������������������������	��#����������#�����������	�����	�����
�����
��������������������������������������������
�������$��������+���������������	��������	��
��������������������������%
�������������������	��#����������4������������������������������������$�������������������������	#���������������������	����������������%������������
����������������'9������������$���	�������������	�������������$�����������
��������������	��������������	�������������
���#������������������������	��
���������������������������	#�������������������������������������������������#�����������	�������������$������������������������� ���	��	������������������������������������������������	������������������$����������������������	��
���������������������������	#�������������������������������������������������:;<=>?@A>BB>C?DEFG>EH>IJKLKMDN:OPIQRST>EUVL<:WXOYP:OPZO;P[\;WYX;]:ÎRNZO;P[\;WYXW]]___K̀RST>EaDbDCRTDKDCc

defghijklmknopeqolrdsltuvwvxwyzwd{xz|wd}zxt~�z�w�xv��|w�{�



����������	
����	�
��
��	�	���
�������������������	�
���	�
���������	
�
�����	���	��������������	

�����	��	����
�������	

�����	�	������	���

���������	��	
�	
��
���������	
��	�	�
�����������
����� �	�����	

�
���������	
���������� �����������!��
�����	! ��
�����	��������	��	�������	��"����	#�$%�&'(�')*+�
,������	"����	��$*'-.(��
����	��
�	
!�'�/���	�����
�����	��
�	
����������	����������������
�����	��������
��������
����	��
�	
��
���	
���������������	��
�	
�
�
���&
�	
��������
	������	
��
�������	������	�����	�������0	
����������	
� ����������	
��	
�
�
�
���	
����������	
��
���	
�����
��������� ���	��
���������	
��������	����
�	�
�����
�����

�	��
�����	�	
����
����
��� ������
������	�
�����	����	��
����������	
���
������

�	��������&���
��
���
��	
���������	
��.�1� ��	�	�2�����������
��3
�
����������������� ��	
�� �����
����������	���	��	�������	
��
���������	
�0&���� � �	������	���
��	�	
�
�
�������	

�
���������	
��������	/��

���	
������������4��������5�������	��
�	
����	�
������	��������	�
��������������������������
��������	����������	���� ������	� ������������
�����
�����������	�
����	��
�	
6��	
����789:;<=>;??;@<ABCD;BE;FGHIHJAK7LMFNOPQ;BRSI97TULVM7LMWL8MXY8TVU8Z7F[OKWL8MXY8TVUTZZ\\\H]OPQ;B̂A_A@OQAHA@̀

abcdefghdiidjkglbcmdnnbofdgpmdqjrqigstbuevvwxgyqtbigznq{d|bunjdt}gl~g�x�x�

��������g��������g���g������������������������������������



��������	
��������	����
��
����
���	������	��	���������		�������
���	���
����������	
���������	
��������������
���	�����������
������	��
�	��	�������������	��������
�
�����	�����������	������������������
���	������������������ ������
�
��
������������!�����"��������#����������
����	�$
�
���	�����������
������	���$�	���	������������#����	��
��������������	�������
���		��
��������
���
�������
�
��
������	
���������	�
��	����
����%�	���	���������������	$
$�����	�
��
������
���	�������&'()&*'+,,()-+.+/0#(���(�	�
��(��	���(�$�(��	�����(���(���
	(����(��
�(12(��(��34567869#(�:�;� */)'/0-<=>+'"���	������	������
�
����	��	�
��?�@AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA<**+,*B C����C���
���#!���C���	��	��D������#!���"��	E F/',GH*<'*?�@IJKLMNOPMQQMRNSTUVMTWMXYZ[Z\S]Î_X̀ abcMTde[KIfĝh_Î_îJ_jkJfhgJlIXma]îJ_jkJfhgfllnnnZoabcMTpSqSRacSZSRrstuvwx(yvzzv{|(}tu~v��t�(���z��w��(

��������(��������(���(���������������������� �¡�¡��¢¢�� �¢

£¤¥¤£¦£§(̈(©ª¥£(«¬(«®



���������	
����������������������������������� ������!�������� "#����$���������#"  �%������ �������������&��������"�'��#����%�� �����"��"���%�������������$��������������(� �)#�" ��*+,,-./01�+23����������%������� �4�##�5�����$�%�%�5&�������4 �"�� ��%�%�4���� �����"��"���%������3�6����##" ��)���"�'��%������%�5&�������4 �4�##�5����������%�) %��������������� ��� �����5"������������" %��7�� ���� �������7���%�"��)�)#"��$�����"#����8")�����9�%�5&�������4 �6" "���3

:;<=>?@A>BB>C?DEFG>EH>IJKLKMDN:OPIQRST>EUVL<:WXOYP:OPZO;P[\;WYX;]:ÎRNZO;P[\;WYXW]]___K̀RST>EaDbDCRTDKDCc

defghijk�lkmnoepn�qdr�stuvuwvxyvdzwy{vd|yws}~y�v�wu��{v~z�



����������	�
���������������������������������������� ��!����"���#�������]���̂ ���������E%6=8A3<6C=899%*3_̀abcdefM<AA<6?A85'31'@%AA%M<6C31*''@%?8=4*'4=gE%((86<?43<%6465R4?<A<343<%6-0'?16<?4AV==<=346?'-465E%86?<A28=34<64)<A<3L-%83A<6'5<65'34<A)'A%MJK'*'?%C6<N'31'6''5@%*@%*(4A23*43'C<?WA46465\&4A843<%6h=9'?<@<?4AAL-4A%6CS3'*(=3*43'C<?=9'65<6C9A4646546'&4A843<%69A4631433143E%86?<A?468='3%C48C'%83?%('9*%C*'==J01<=M<AA)'<6=3*8('634A<6@838*'=9'65<6C5'?<=<%6=465M<AAC<&'31'E%86?<A4*%45(493%M%*I@*%(-465M'9*%9%='31<=4=31'=34*3<6C9%<63@%*+.+ZJijkklmnopqnjmpmrspontnqpqnjmu027M<AA(464C'4AA4=9'?3=%@@4?<A<343<6C31'B'C<%6DO9<%<5C%&'*646?'?%((<33''(''3<6C=%&'*%8*L'4*A%6C?%63*4?3J01<=<6?A85'=?%63'63C'6'*43<%6-=?1'58A<6C465A%C<=3<?=-(''3<6C(<683'=465*'?%*5<6C=-4654AA6'?'==4*LE%86?<A?%((86<?43<%6=J0%'6=8*'31'E%86?<A*'(4<6=<6?%(9A<46?'M<31E%A%*45%Q=286=1<6'A4M=027M<AA9*%58?'4AA(''3<6C(43'*<4A=<643<('AL@4=1<%6465M%*I?%AA4)%*43<&'ALM<3131'E%86?<A:R<=?4AVC'63-O@@<?'*-%*%31'**%A';M1%='*'=9%6=<)<A<3L<3vwwxyz{|�v}�~_de��e���f�����d�a������e�a�a_e_a����f���be� �

��������������������������� �¡¢��£ ¢¤��¥¢ �¦§¢̈�̈ �©©¤�§£©



����������	��
�	��������������������
����
�����������������	������
��������������������������	�����
�	��������	������������������������������	������	�������������������������� !"#$!%&'(($()%#! *+�����������������,��������������������-.�������������
�����/		�	�����0�/1��������������	����������2��	�������	��03451���������������������������������	���������6����	���������������������������������������������������	���	����	���������
��������	�/�������������-.�����������/�	���������
�3�����7	��	�������������������������	��
�	����������������������������������	�������-����������������������2�������	�89:;<:=>?:@?A:BC<D;9;E:=?C<F:<G>=<CH9:B>F;99BC=;=DC;9F:G>F?C=EIJKL#!$&ML()%$#%N$&$)O*��������P��
������
���
�	�������������		����		�����	�����������
����������	���
����������	����		���
�,���������3�������/	��	������������������	�����������������������	����		������	�	�������������
�	������������6������	������
�
�,�������������������	��
��������������	����	���	��������	��3����������-�������7	�����������	������	���
���
�
�	���	��		���	���������������	����		��������
���������	����������6����	���	���������	�
���������������
����6�QRRSTUVWXYRZ�
�-�������.�������	�	�
�����������	�������
��	������6��������6���������	[\]ŜR _V̀ VWXYRXabXcd eXfĉghfUiRj _klRmkTRn%!$&$)%)$K#%#oJKppL#$!%)$K# QSWkmkjSjRqYkXkÙ XrRcTSTWRsXllkjjRRlRRjkTîaXctRikXTuSTUlSTSiRSmmWXllfTkWSjkXT uvu]ĉwxyyvz]cZx{{|}~v ��������RW�y�������,��	�����������������������������	������������������������	������������	
����������������������������������	�������������������������,��	��������������������������		�	��������������������		������������������
�����������������	�� ��������������P������������
�����6�.���������������������	�,�������������	��
��� ��	�������������������	����������	��,�������������	
�� ��������������

4�����������������.��������,���������������	0�����������
	���
����
	������������1 �� �������������,���������������
,�����������	����
������������������������	 �� �������������� !"#$!%&'(($()%#! \cXrkURjSkmXcRUjRW]TkWSmŜ k̂̂jSTWRjXj]RsXfTWkmSTUak̂WSmSiRTj u�v]ĉwxyyvz]cZx{y|�yv ��������RW�y�/		�	��
�,������������������345	����
�	�����������������
 �� ������������������ ¡¢��£�¤?:;¥¦;=�§F>̈G�©:EC>=�ª�«;DC9C?;?C>=�8F>G><;9 ¬

®̄°±²³́�µ́¶·̧®¹·�º»�¼½¾¿¾À¿ÁÂ¿ÃÀÂÄ¿ÅÂÀ¼ÆÇÂÈ¿ÈÀ¾ÉÉÄ¿ÇÃÉ



�����������	
������
����
���������������������������������������������
����������
��������� ������	
��������
��	��������������
��	
���������
���������
�  � !"#$%&'(��$� )���
������
������
�������*��
�+����'��������
�����������

�
��
�����
���
������
�

�
��
���,-.��
�����/0 1�
��������������
�	
�����������
2��
��0 3������	
��3����������
���4�
������5
����
��
��
��������������
��������, 67 !"#$%&'(��$� 8�����������
����	���
��������
�
��0 .��������������
������������������(
��������9�
�
�*������ �� !"#$%&'(��$� :;<=>?@A<BCD?=DE?@?CF GHIIJKKLMNOPQNNLNR STUMHVKWXSSTYUVZXT[\ST ]HRHK̂S_̀aJIJbcJVS_0 (��
����	�������9��
����0 d����
��������	������������	����
� �7 .��� '(��� e;CD@ fM̂QPgQcMVfM̂QP̂VQhJP iSjUMHVKWXSSTYUVZXkS[SSTXkS[SSTlXS[mmmno]pafqf]g Xk_[SSTrstusvwxyzz{$ty|}~wws����$����������$��twszz��$���$����$��~�v~u�z$���$�~�svw��$�x$�s���~���z$�s�zw�$���tyzw~��$�ws��}��$���yu�$�����v�twszz��tws��}�����yu�v�}� ¡¢£¤¥¢�¡�¦
§̈ ©̈ª«¬$®̄$°±²³́µ³¶$·̧¹º»$¼²½¾¹¶$¿$À³Á¾Â¾±³±¾¹¶$Ã̧¹»¹Ä³Â Å

ÆÇÈÉÊËÌÍ$ÎÍÏÐÑÇÒÐ$ÓÆÔ$ÕÖ×Ø×ÙØÚÛØÆÜÙÛÝØÆÞÛÙÕßàÛáØáÙ×ââÝØàÜâ



 

178 West Jefferson Avenue · PO Box 190 · Hayden, CO 81639-0190 
970-276-3741  

www.haydencolorado.com 
 

 
Town of Hayden 

 
Town Council Agenda Item 

 
MEETING DATE:   February 15, 2024 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) between Routt County Sheriff’s Office 
and Hayden Police Department 
 
AGENDA SECTION:   New Business 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Scott Scurlock 
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED:  Yes, but no recommended 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:  During times of short staffing or staff unavailability, the Hayden Police 
Department has contracted with the Routt County Sheriff’s Office (RCSO) to provide law enforcement 
service to the Town of Hayden. When an RCSO deputy/sergeant operates under the IGA, that 
personnel is assigned to the Town of Hayden, not just the county.    
 
An Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) for similar services was signed in 2023; however, that IGA 
has expired. This IGA accounts for the 5% pay raise that RCSO received for 2024 and the increase in 
the per-mile rate for vehicle usage.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Move to approve the Inter-Governmental Agreement between the Routt 
County Sheriff’s Office and the Hayden Police Department for contracted law enforcement service 
through December 31, 2024. 
 
MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:   
 



1 
 

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 This Reimbursement Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between 
the Town Of hayden, a Colorado home rule municipal corporation, (“Town”) and the Routt County 
Sheriff’s Department (“Sheriff”) (collectively “Parties”) effective this _____ day of 
_________________________, 2024. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town is experiencing a temporary shortage of sworn police officers 
available for patrols within the Town’s corporate limits during certain patrol hours; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town’s Police Department and the Sheriff both have jurisdiction to 

enforce the law within the corporate limits of the Town of Hayden and often coordinate to provide 
such services; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Sheriff is willing and able to assign Sheriff’s deputies and sergeants to 
patrol within the Town of Hayden corporate limits during certain patrol hours; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to reimburse the Sheriff for the extra patrol costs incurred 
by the Sheriff in patrolling within Town limits. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following covenants and promises, the Parties 
agree as follows: 
 

1. Reimbursement of Sheriff Cost.  Town agrees to reimburse the Sheriff for the cost of 
extra patrol hours and mileage.  The Parties agree that Deputy patrol coverage shall be 
reimbursed at a rate of $74.46 per hour, and Sergeant coverage at a rate of $95.82 per 
hour.  The Town shall not be responsible for any insurance, worker’s compensation, or 
other compensation to Sheriff’s officers. 
 
The Town shall also reimburse reported mileage from Deputy and Sergeant patrol 
coverage at a rate of $1.19 per mile.  

 
Sheriff shall submit to the Town’s Finance Department monthly invoices no later than the 
15th of each month for reimbursement of the previous month’s extra patrols.  Invoices 
shall document Deputy or Sergeant hours and mileage logs. Town shall remit 
reimbursement to the Routt County Sheriff’s Office no later than 10 days after receipt of 
invoice. 

 
2. Representatives and Coordination.  The Town designates Police Chief Scott Scurlock or 

his designee as the responsible Town staff member to communicate and coordinate with 
the Sheriff for extra patrol coverage office.  The Sheriff designates Undersheriff Josh 
Carrell as its representative to communicate and coordinate extra patrol coverage.   
 
The Parties agree that the Sheriff is under no obligation to provide extra patrol services, 
but shall endeavor to do so as its resources are available in the Sheriff’s sole discretion.  
Likewise, the Town is under no obligation by the terms of this Agreement to request 



2 
 

additional patrol coverage in the Town’s corporate limits, but if it does request and the 
Sheriff is able to provide such patrols, it agrees to reimburse the Sheriff for its costs. 
 

3. Term and Termination.  This agreement shall commence upon execution and shall 
continue until December 31, 2024.  Either party may terminate this Agreement upon 
seven (7) days’ prior written notice to the other party.  The Town shall only be 
responsible for the payment of reimbursements to the date of termination.   
 

4. Command and Liability.  The Parties agree that during all times the Sheriff is providing 
additional patrols within the Town under this reimbursement agreement, such Sheriff’s 
officers shall be on regular duty on behalf of the Sheriff, such officers shall be under the 
command of the Sheriff, and such officers shall follow the Sheriff’s policies and 
procedures. 
 
Accordingly, any liability that accrues under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act 
while performing additional patrols under this Reimbursement Agreement shall be 
allocated to the Sheriff.  The Parties expressly further agree that the provisions of C.R.S. 
§ 29-5-108 do not apply to this Reimbursement Agreement, since Sheriff’s officers are 
not being assigned to the Town and are not under the command or control of the Town. 
 

5. No Waiver of Governmental Immunity.  The Parties hereto understand and agree that the 
Town and the Sheriff are relying on, and does not waive or intend to waive by any 
provision of this Reimbursement Agreement, the monetary limitations and any other 
rights, immunities, and protections provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity 
Act, Section 24-10-101 et seq., C.R.S., as from time to time amended, or any other law or 
limitation of liability otherwise available to the Town, its officers, or its employees, and 
the Sheriff, its officers, or its employees. 

 
6.  Relationship of the Parties. The Parties to this Agreement are not and shall not be 

construed to be partners, contractors for services, joint venturers or agents of one another 
with respect to any activities associated with this Agreement.  No agent, employee, or 
officer of the Sheriff shall be deemed to be an agent, employee, or officer of the Town. 

 
7.  Notice.   Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given to any party 

hereunder shall be deemed received when personally delivered, or the next business day 
following deposit with a nationally recognized overnight courier, or three (3) calendar days 
following deposit into the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, marked certified or registered mail, 
addressed as follows: 

   
  TO CITY: Town of Hayden Colorado  
  Attention: Chief of Police 
  P.O. Box 190 
  Hayden, CO 81639 
 
  WITH A COPY TO: Town of Hayden  
  Attention:  Town Attorney 



3 
 

  P.O. Box 190 
  Hayden, CO 81639 
 
  TO SHERIFF:  
   
  2027 Shield Drive 
  Steamboat Springs, CO 80487 
 
 

Either party may change its address for receiving or giving notice and other 
communications hereunder, by giving written notice designating a new address to the other 
party. 

 
8.  Venue and Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Colorado.  The parties agree that venue in any action to enforce or interpret this 
Reimbursement Agreement shall be in the Routt County District Court. 

 
9.  Miscellaneous.  This Agreement constitutes the entire, integrated agreement of the parties 

with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior understandings, 
correspondence, negotiations, and agreements of the parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof.  No provision of this Agreement may be amended, waived or otherwise 
modified without the prior written consent of all of the applicable parties hereto. Nothing 
in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer upon any other person any 
rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities.  Any provision of this Agreement which is held 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be prohibited or unenforceable shall be ineffective 
to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability, without invalidating or rendering 
unenforceable the remaining provisions of this Agreement. The parties will cooperate to 
replace the invalid or unenforceable provision with a provision which as nearly as legally 
possible gives effect to the intent of the parties as expressed herein.  

 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date first above 
written. 
 
      Town of Hayden 
 
      
      ________________________________ 
      Mathew Mendisco, Town Manager 
Attest: 
 
_______________________________ 
Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk 
 
 



4 
 

 
  ROUTT COUNTY SHERIFF 
   
 

________________________________ 
      By: 
      Its: 
 



 

178 West Jefferson Avenue · PO Box 190 · Hayden, CO 81639-0190 
970-276-3741·Fax 970-276-3644 

www.haydencolorado.com 

 
Town of Hayden 

 
Town Council Agenda Item 

 
MEETING DATE:  February 15th, 2024 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Review and Consider Approval of Resolution 24-01 A Resolution Authorizing the 
Acquisition by Eminent Domain of Easement Interests in Real Property Situated in Routt County for the 
Purpose of Constructing a Wastewater Transmission Line 
 
AGENDA SECTION:  New Business 
 
PRESENTED BY: Mathew Mendisco  
 
CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED: Yes, but not recommended 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW:  As the Council is aware the Town has been working on a design and 
construction of a gravity sewer starting at the business park and moving down Hwy 40 to Shelton Ln 
where in connects to the Town system. This will be a huge improvement at the Airport zone and allow 
for future growth in the area. As part of the designed path the line crosses the Herford Haven Property 
which is owned by the Camilletti Family and also has a conservation easement from The Nature 
Conservancy (TNC). The Camilletti’s have agreed in principle to allow the sewer line with conditions (which 
are being negotiated as we speak) but TNC has stated that the easement does not allow for the 
construction of municipal utilities. This is very important for the design and speaking with TNC they have 
stated that written notice of condemnation would be sufficient for TNC to negotiate an easement. This 
resolution authorizes that process to begin and formalizes official notification of condemnation for the 
purposes of the wastewater line easement.   
 
All other sections have agreed to easement agreements.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve resolution 2024-02 as presented.  
 
 
MANAGER RECOMMENDATION/COMMENTS:  I concur with this recommendation  



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

1 

TOWN OF HAYDEN 

RESOLUTION 2024-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HAYDEN, COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION BY 
EMINENT DOMAIN OF EASEMENT INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY 
SITUATED IN ROUTT COUNTY AND DESCRIBED HEREIN, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING A WASTEWATER TRANSMISSION 
LINE. 

 
WHEREAS, Article II, Section 15 and Article XX, Sections 1 and 6 of the Colorado 
Constitution, and Section 10-6 of the Home Rule Charter of the Town of Hayden, 
provide for the power of eminent domain by condemnation for the purpose of 
constructing, operating and maintaining a system for the collection, conveyance and 
treatment of wastewater where just compensation is paid for the taking of private 
property; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Town of Hayden, Colorado (the “Town”) acquire  
permanent easement interests, for wastewater line purposes, over approximately 
____________ square feet of real property, and temporary construction easement 
interests over certain real property adjacent thereto of approximately ______ square 
feet of real property , which permanent and temporary easements are legally described 
and depicted in Exhibit A hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the above-described easement interests in real property is necessary for 
the construction of the wastewater line improvement project known as the Hayden 
Business Park Project (the “Project”) and there is an immediate need for said easement 
interests in real property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project will improve the public health and safety by providing a 
wastewater treatment line that will avoid the need to further utilize existing and aging lift 
stations. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF HAYDEN THAT: 

Section 1.  Recitals Incorporated.  The recitals contained above are incorporated 
herein by reference and are adopted as findings and determinations of the Town 
Council. 

Section 2. Intent to Exercise Power of Eminent Domain. The Town Council 
hereby finds and determines that it is in the interest of the health, safety and general 
welfare of the public, and serves a necessary public purpose, to acquire permanent 



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

2 

easement interests over the area described and depicted in Exhibit A for the 
construction of the Project (the “Project Area”), and for the further maintenance, repair 
or improvement thereof, if deemed necessary; and, further, finds that it is in the interest 
of the health, safety and general welfare of the public, and serves a necessary public 
purpose, to acquire a temporary construction easement over land adjacent to the 
Project Area for the purpose of the construction the Project.  The Town Council hereby 
declares an immediate public need and necessity for the interests in land described 
herein.  Exhibit A is incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 3. Good Faith Negotiation.  Town Staff, the Town Attorney, and any 
and all persons retained or employed by the Town of Hayden in the prosecution of this 
matter are hereby directed to comply with all notice and good faith negotiation 
requirements set forth in C.R.S. § 38-1-101 et seq., in the conduct of the within 
authorized eminent domain action.  Eminent domain will only be used if good faith 
negotiations are unsuccessful. 

Section 4. Town Attorney Authorized.  If compensation to be paid for a 
permanent easement over the Project Area, or for the temporary construction easement 
adjacent to the same, cannot be agreed upon by the interested parties, the Town 
Attorney of the Town of Hayden is hereby authorized and directed to initiate 
proceedings in eminent domain for such interests as may need to be acquired within 
and about the Project Area by making application to the District Court in Routt County, 
Colorado, and to petition such court to enter such necessary orders as to assure 
immediate possession of such interests in order to allow the Project to timely 
commence, with just compensation to be paid to the owner(s) having an interest in the 
property to be acquired. 

Section 5. Expenditure Authorized.  The Town Council hereby authorizes the 
expenditure of that amount of money which is determined by the appropriate tribunal to 
constitute the just compensation necessary for the acquisition of the property interests 
described herein that are in and about the Project Area.  The Town Council hereby 
authorizes the payment of all awards, legal expenses, court costs, and any other 
expenses of eminent domain lawfully found to constitute an element of just 
compensation, as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Section 6. Retained Rights and Powers.  In the prosecution of the within 
authorized eminent domain action, the Town shall retain all rights and powers lawfully 
delegated to it by the Colorado Constitution, the Home Rule Charter of the Town of 
Hayden, and state statute.  Nothing contained in this Resolution shall be construed as 
precluding or preventing negotiations by the Town Attorney, or the Town’s duly 
authorized representatives, toward the purchase by the Town of easement interests in 
the Project Area at private sale, nor shall anything herein be construed as preventing 
the Town of Hayden, upon acquiring such interests by private sale, and at the Town’s 
discretion, from terminating the eminent domain proceedings.  

Section 7. Effective date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption. 



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

3 

 

INTRODUCED, CONSIDERED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of February, 
2024. 

 
________________________________ 
Ryan Banks, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:. 
 
___________________________________ 
Sharon Johnson, Town Clerk 

 
 

 
 



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

4 

EXHIBIT A 
 
The perpetual easement shall be  20  feet in width,  10  feet on each side of 
the as-constructed center line of said facilities. The proposed location of facilities described 
as follows: 
   

Centerline Description 

 
[PERMANENT EASEMENT #1] Commencing at the North 
quarter corner of Section 11, Township 6 North, Range 88 
West, 6th Principal Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; thence 
South 88°39'35" East 1033.56 feet along section line; thence 
South 01°20'25" West 394.17 feet to a point on the northerly 
right of way line of US 40 and the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
thence North 67°53'00" West 154.68 feet; thence South 
69°27'46" West 169.12 feet; thence South 39°35'40" West 111.82 
feet; thence South 14°02'30" West 153.26 feet; thence South 
60°47'48" West 98.88 feet; thence South 67°32'13" West 143.70 
feet; thence South 48°56'39" West 133.93 feet; thence South 
63°23'29" West 40.21 feet; thence South 65°52'29" West 
225.89 feet; thence South 70°27'40" West 217.68 feet; thence 
North 74°43'40" West 150.26 feet; thence South 88°26'33" 
West 210.26 feet; thence South 69°57'01" West 162.01 feet; 
thence South 40°24'04" West 101.35 feet; thence South 
17°05'11" West 175.40 feet; thence South 31°33'06" West 179.63 
feet; thence South 62°03'44" West 50.51 feet; thence South 
76°57'44" West 124.59 feet; thence South 71°05'19" West 
210.53 feet; thence South 88°20'59" West 49.88 feet; thence 
North 89°40'00" West 379.31 feet; thence South 47°35'40" 
West 12.68 feet to the POINT OF ENDING. 
 
The sidelines of said strip shall be lengthened or shortened to 
begin and end at the boundary of the grantors parcel.  
 
PERMANENT EASEMENT #2] Commencing at the Northeast 
Corner of Section 11, Township 6 North, Range 88 West, 6th 
Principal Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; thence South 
2°25’25” West 128.41 feet along section line to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; thence North 88°03’16” West 249.57 feet to a 



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

5 

point on the Southerly right of way line of US 40 and the 
POINT OF ENDING. 
 
The sidelines of said strip shall be lengthened or shortened to 
begin and end at the boundary of the grantors parcel.  
 
 

A temporary construction easement described as follows: 
 

Description 

 
[TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT #1] That portion of 
the grantors parcel lying between the southerly bank of an 
existing irrigation canal and the Northerly right of way of US 
40.  Except for the following areas: 
 
[EXCLUSION AREA 1] Commencing at the North quarter corner 
of Section 11, Township 6 North, Range 88 West, 6th Principal 
Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; thence South 88°39'35" 
East 730.13 feet along section line; thence South 01°20'25" 
West 455.62 feet the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence North 
61°57'42" East 201.98 feet; thence South 67°53'00" East 9.27 
feet; thence South 29°09'43" East 90.42 feet to a point on 
northerly right of way line of US 40; thence South 60°50'17" 
West 208.24 feet along said right of way; thence North 
28°53'02" West 101.62 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
Contains 20691 square feet or 0.475 acres, more or less. 
 
[EXCLUSION AREA 2] Commencing at the North quarter 
corner of Section 11, Township 6 North, Range 88 West, 6th 
Principal Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; thence North 
88°39'35" West 313.02 feet; thence South 01°20'25" West 
1077.56 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence South 
01°42'46" West 78.62 feet; thence South 01°13'58" East 48.28 
feet to a point on the northerly right of way line of US 40; 
thence South 61°12'20" West 335.44 feet along said right of 
way; thence South 69°38'42" West 120.63 feet along said right 
of way; thence North 01°10'29" West 162.80 feet; thence East 
73.21 feet; thence North 00°05'20" West 91.58 feet; thence 



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

6 

North 89°26'50" East 96.03 feet; thence North 00°00'51" East 
113.50 feet; thence South 89°54'26" East 34.16 feet; thence 
South 00°09'54" East 38.14 feet; thence South 89°56'56" East 
208.32 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Contains 78670 
square feet or 1.806 acres, more or less. 
 
[TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT #2] Commencing 
at the Northeast Corner of Section 11, Township 6 North, 
Range 88 West, 6th Principal Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; 
thence South 02°25'25" West 128.41 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; thence continuing South 02°25'25" West 60.02 
feet along section line; thence North 88°15'03" West 519.25 
feet; thence South 80°36'30" West 171.36 feet; thence North 
08°23'45" West 11.55 feet to a point on the southerly right of 
way line of US 40; thence North 81°07'42" East 448.24 feet 
along said right of way; thence South 88°03'19" East 249.57 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Contains 26524 square feet or 0.609 acres, more or less. 
 
 
The permanent easement and temporary easement areas are 
as depicted in Exhibits A1, A2, A3 and A4 below. 



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

7 

 



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

8 

 



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

9 

 



TOH.TWR.00001 
 

10 

 



1 
 

______________, 2024 
 
 
 
CT Corporation System 
7700 East Arapahoe Road, Suite 220 
Centennial, Colorado 80112-1268 
 

Re: Notice of Intent, to The Nature Conservancy, to Acquire Real Property 
(Easement) by Eminent Domain  

 
 
Dear Registered Agent for The Nature Conservancy, a District of Columbia nonprofit 
corporation: 
 

The Town of Hayden (Town) seeks to acquire, by eminent domain, an easement over the 
real property necessary for the construction of an underground wastewater conveyance line 
(Project). The Town’s condemnation and use of an easement over real property for the Project 
serves a public purpose.   

 
The Town believes that The Nature Conservancy, a District of Columbia nonprofit 

corporation, has an interest in the real property that will be subject to the Subject Easement (as 
defined below) pursuant to that certain Deed of Conservation Easement dated August 2, 1996, 
and recorded on August 21, 1996 at Book 723, Page 1214 in the Clerk and Recorder’s Office for 
Routt County, Colorado. 
 

Pursuant to C.R.S. § 38–1–121, the Town is required to provide to the record owner(s) of 
the real property at issue (1) notice of the Town’s intent to acquire real property by eminent 
domain and (2) notice of the right to an appraisal. A copy of C.R.S. § 38–1–121 is attached to 
this letter.   
 

Notice of Intent: 
 

To acquire an easement necessary for the Project, the Town intends to acquire a 
permanent underground utility line easement interest, and a temporary construction easement in 
connection with the same, (the Subject Easement) described and depicted in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 

The real property that will be encumbered by the Subject Easement is also known by the 
following street address:_______________________________________________________.  
 
 
 

Valuation Rights: 
 



 2. 

It is the Town’s policy and obligation to pay fair market value to acquire the easement 
necessary for the Project. Because the Town estimates the fair market value of an easement 
interest in the real property that will be subject to the easement to be greater than $5,000.00, as a 
record owner, you may employ an appraiser of your choosing to obtain an appraisal of the value 
of the Subject Easement.  
 

C.R.S. § 38–1–121 requires the Town to pay the reasonable cost of this appraisal, so long 
as the following conditions are satisfied:  
 

1. The appraisal is made using sound, fair, and recognized appraisal practices which 
are consistent with the law; and 

2. A final copy of the appraisal is delivered to the Town by DATE deadline, 90 days 
from the [DATE OF THIS LETTER]. 

 
The party receiving payment or seeking reimbursement from the Town for the reasonable 

cost of the appraisal (either the owner or the appraiser), in addition to timely delivering to the 
Town the required appraisal, must also (1) submit to the Town a final invoice for the appraisal 
and (2) submit to the Town a completed W–9 Taxpayer identification form. Any failure to 
provide these documents to the Town will delay the Town’s payment or reimbursement of the 
cost of the appraisal.  
 

With good cause, the Town may consider extending the DATE deadline. However, 
unless the Town expressly agrees in writing to an extension of the DATE deadline, the Town is 
not obligated to reimburse the Landowner for an appraisal received after DATE deadline. 
 

Also, if more than one person is interested in the property sought to be acquired and such 
persons cannot agree on a single appraisal to be submitted to the Town by the DATE deadline, 
then the City shall be relieved of any obligation to pay for the appraisal.  
 

I am available to discuss the Project and this Notice of Intent with you. I may be reached 
at 970-276-3741 or Mathew.Mendisco@haydencolorado.org.  
 

Sincerely, 
 
TOWN OF HAYDEN 
 
 
 
Mathew Mendisco, Town Manager 

Enclosures: 
1. Legal Description of Subject Easement 
2. Copy of C.R.S. § 38–1–121 
3. W–9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number Form 
 

mailto:Mathew.Mendisco@haydencolorado.org


 2. 

EXHIBIT A 
 
The perpetual easement shall be  20  feet in width,  10  feet on each side of 
the as-constructed center line of said facilities. The proposed location of facilities described 
as follows: 
   

Centerline Description 

 
[PERMANENT EASEMENT #1] Commencing at the North 
quarter corner of Section 11, Township 6 North, Range 88 
West, 6th Principal Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; thence 
South 88°39'35" East 1033.56 feet along section line; thence 
South 01°20'25" West 394.17 feet to a point on the northerly 
right of way line of US 40 and the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
thence North 67°53'00" West 154.68 feet; thence South 
69°27'46" West 169.12 feet; thence South 39°35'40" West 111.82 
feet; thence South 14°02'30" West 153.26 feet; thence South 
60°47'48" West 98.88 feet; thence South 67°32'13" West 143.70 
feet; thence South 48°56'39" West 133.93 feet; thence South 
63°23'29" West 40.21 feet; thence South 65°52'29" West 
225.89 feet; thence South 70°27'40" West 217.68 feet; thence 
North 74°43'40" West 150.26 feet; thence South 88°26'33" 
West 210.26 feet; thence South 69°57'01" West 162.01 feet; 
thence South 40°24'04" West 101.35 feet; thence South 
17°05'11" West 175.40 feet; thence South 31°33'06" West 179.63 
feet; thence South 62°03'44" West 50.51 feet; thence South 
76°57'44" West 124.59 feet; thence South 71°05'19" West 
210.53 feet; thence South 88°20'59" West 49.88 feet; thence 
North 89°40'00" West 379.31 feet; thence South 47°35'40" 
West 12.68 feet to the POINT OF ENDING. 
 
The sidelines of said strip shall be lengthened or shortened to 
begin and end at the boundary of the grantors parcel.  
 
PERMANENT EASEMENT #2] Commencing at the Northeast 
Corner of Section 11, Township 6 North, Range 88 West, 6th 
Principal Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; thence South 
2°25’25” West 128.41 feet along section line to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; thence North 88°03’16” West 249.57 feet to a 



 2. 

point on the Southerly right of way line of US 40 and the 
POINT OF ENDING. 
 
The sidelines of said strip shall be lengthened or shortened to 
begin and end at the boundary of the grantors parcel.  
 
 

A temporary construction easement described as follows: 
 

Description 

 
[TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT #1] That portion of 
the grantors parcel lying between the southerly bank of an 
existing irrigation canal and the Northerly right of way of US 
40.  Except for the following areas: 
 
[EXCLUSION AREA 1] Commencing at the North quarter corner 
of Section 11, Township 6 North, Range 88 West, 6th Principal 
Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; thence South 88°39'35" 
East 730.13 feet along section line; thence South 01°20'25" 
West 455.62 feet the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence North 
61°57'42" East 201.98 feet; thence South 67°53'00" East 9.27 
feet; thence South 29°09'43" East 90.42 feet to a point on 
northerly right of way line of US 40; thence South 60°50'17" 
West 208.24 feet along said right of way; thence North 
28°53'02" West 101.62 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
Contains 20691 square feet or 0.475 acres, more or less. 
 
[EXCLUSION AREA 2] Commencing at the North quarter 
corner of Section 11, Township 6 North, Range 88 West, 6th 
Principal Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; thence North 
88°39'35" West 313.02 feet; thence South 01°20'25" West 
1077.56 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence South 
01°42'46" West 78.62 feet; thence South 01°13'58" East 48.28 
feet to a point on the northerly right of way line of US 40; 
thence South 61°12'20" West 335.44 feet along said right of 
way; thence South 69°38'42" West 120.63 feet along said right 
of way; thence North 01°10'29" West 162.80 feet; thence East 
73.21 feet; thence North 00°05'20" West 91.58 feet; thence 



 2. 

North 89°26'50" East 96.03 feet; thence North 00°00'51" East 
113.50 feet; thence South 89°54'26" East 34.16 feet; thence 
South 00°09'54" East 38.14 feet; thence South 89°56'56" East 
208.32 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Contains 78670 
square feet or 1.806 acres, more or less. 
 
[TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT #2] Commencing 
at the Northeast Corner of Section 11, Township 6 North, 
Range 88 West, 6th Principal Meridian, Routt County, Colorado; 
thence South 02°25'25" West 128.41 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; thence continuing South 02°25'25" West 60.02 
feet along section line; thence North 88°15'03" West 519.25 
feet; thence South 80°36'30" West 171.36 feet; thence North 
08°23'45" West 11.55 feet to a point on the southerly right of 
way line of US 40; thence North 81°07'42" East 448.24 feet 
along said right of way; thence South 88°03'19" East 249.57 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Contains 26524 square feet or 0.609 acres, more or less. 
 
 
The permanent easement and temporary easement areas are 
as depicted in Exhibits A1, A2, A3 and A4 below. 



 2. 

 



 2. 

 



 2. 

 



 2. 

 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 733 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE HAYDEN MUNICIPAL CODE BY AMENDING 
TITLE 4 CONCERNING ANIMALS AND ESTABLISHING ADDITIONAL ANIMAL 
REGULATIONS  

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Hayden, Colorado (the “Town”), is a Colorado home rule 
municipality, duly organized and existing under its home rule charter; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 1-2 of the home rule charter and C.R.S. § 31-15-401, 
the Town, acting through its Town Council (the “Council”), is authorized to adopt ordinances 
regulating the keeping of animals, including the prohibition and punishment for cruelty to 
animals; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to such authority, the Council previously various animal 
regulations, codified as Title 4 of the Hayden Municipal Code (“Code”); and 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends amendments and additions to the Code to better regulate 
animal uses within the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that it is desirable to update the animal code to better 
reflect the Town’s current animal uses. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO, THAT: 

Section 1. Recitals Incorporated. The above and foregoing recitals are incorporated 
herein by reference and adopted as findings and determinations of the Town Council. 

Section 2. Title 4, Chapter 4.28 of the Code, concerning prohibited animals, is amended 
by the addition of new Section 4.28.040 to read in its entirety as follows: 

Section. 4.28.040. – Unlawful Accumulation of Animals. 

The accumulation of animals substantially increases the likelihood of the 
mistreatment of animals, including starvation, neglect, cruelty and abandonment, 
as well as the noxious odors, health hazards and unsanitary condition of premises 
often accompanying such actions, as addressed in this chapter. Therefore: 

(a) Limitations on Animal Ownership. It shall be unlawful to permit the 
accumulation of animals being over four (4) months of age beyond the 
following restrictions: 

(1) No household less than 1500 square feet in gross floor area shall own 
or have custody of more than two (2) dog or cats combined. 



2 
 

(2) No household between 1500 and 2500 square feet in gross floor area 
shall own or have custody of more than three (3) dogs or cats 
combined. 

(3) No household more than 2500 square feet in gross floor area shall 
own or have custody of more than four (4) dogs or cats combined. 

(b) No person or household shall own or have custody of more than two (2) 
Vietnamese potbellied pigs more than four (4) months of age. 

Section 3. Section 4.20.020 of the Code, concerning vaccination certificates, is 
hereby repealed and designated as “Reserved” as follows: 

Sec. 4.20.020. - Certificate, contents. RESERVED 

Upon vaccination, the veterinarian administering the vaccine shall execute and 
furnish to the owner of a dog, cat or rabies-susceptible animal as evidence thereof, a 
certificate upon a form furnished by the town. Such owner shall retain a duplicate copy, and 
one copy thereof shall be filed with the town clerk. Such certificate shall contain the 
following information: 

(1) Name, address and telephone number of the owner or harborer of the inoculated 
animal;  

(2) Date of inoculation;  

(3) Type of vaccine used;  

(4) Year and series number of the rabies tag; and  

(5) Breed, age, color and sex of the inoculated animal. 

Section 4. Section 4.44.020 of the Code, concerning inhumane treatment of animals, is 
amended as follows: 

Sec. 4.44.020. - Inhumane treatment; abandonment of animals. 

No owner shall fail to provide his animal with sufficient, good and wholesome food, 
water, proper shelter and protection from the weather, veterinary care when needed to prevent 
suffering, and with humane care and treatment. No person will beat, cruelly treat, torment, 
overload, overwork or otherwise abuse any animal, or cause or permit any dogfight, cockfight, 
bullfight or other conflict between animals and humans. No owner of any animal shall abandon 
any animal. If any owner is charged with a violation of this Section, the animal may it may be 
taken and impounded pursuant to Chapter 4.40 and the owner or possessor of the animal may 
be fined as provided in section 4.16.010. 

Section 5. Section 4.24.010 of the Code, concerning the registration of animals, is 
amended as follows: 



3 
 

Sec. 4.24.010. – Animal License; Required fee. 

Any person having custody of any dog, cat, or potbellied pig three months 
of age or older for a minimum of 30 days shall procure a license. License fees 
shall be paid annually to the town. License fees shall be in an amount to be 
determined by the Town Council from time to time. All licenses issued under 
this chapter shall expire on May 31 of each year, and the full amount shall be 
paid for any fraction of the licensing year. Upon collection of the license fee by 
the town, a dated receipt shall be issued stating the name and address of the 
owner, tag number and description, together with a town license tag stamped 
with a serial number, year and county and state of issuance. Such license shall 
not be issued for any dog without proof of vaccination of that animal. 

Section 6. Effect on Existing Conditions. From the date of passage of this ordinance, 
any person or household that is over the limit of animals set forth in Code Section 4.28.040 is 
temporarily permitted to remain over the limit and such allowance is specific to those pets in 
existence as of the effective date of this ordinance. 

 Section 7. Codification Amendments. The codifier of the Town’s Municipal Code is 
hereby authorized to make such numerical and formatting changes as may be necessary to 
incorporate the provisions of this Ordinance within the Hayden Municipal Code. The Town 
Clerk is authorized to correct, or approve the correction by the codifier, of any typographical 
error in the enacted regulations, provided that such correction shall not substantively change any 
provision of the regulations adopted in this Ordinance. Such corrections may include spelling, 
reference, citation, enumeration, and grammatical errors. 

 Section 8. Severability. If any article, section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such decision shall not 
affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Town 
Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each part or parts hereof 
irrespective of the fact that any one part or parts be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

 Section 9. Repealer. All other ordinances or portions thereof inconsistent or conflicting 
with this ordinance or any portion hereof is hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency 
or conflict.  

 Section 10. No Existing Violation Affected. The repeal or modification of any provision 
of the Municipal Code of the Town of Hayden by this ordinance shall not release, extinguish, 
alter, modify or change in whole or in part any penalty, forfeiture or liability, either civil or 
criminal, which shall have been incurred under such provision. Each provision shall be treated 
and held as still remaining in force for the purpose of sustaining any and all proper actions, suits, 
proceedings and prosecutions for enforcement of the penalty, forfeiture or liability, as well as for 
the purpose of sustaining any judgment, decree or order which can or may be rendered, entered 
or made in such actions, suits, proceedings or prosecutions. 

 Section 11. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
on final passing and adoption, and shall be published in accordance with Section 3-3h of the 



4 
 

Home Rule Charter and recorded in the Town Book of Ordinances kept for that purpose, 
authenticated by the signatures of the Mayor and Town Clerk. 

 Section 12. Public Hearing on Ordinance No. ___. A public hearing on this Ordinance 
will be held on March 7,2024 at the regular meeting of the Hayden Town Council beginning at 
7:30 p.m. at the Hayden Town Hall, 178 West Jefferson Avenue, Hayden, Colorado. 

 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-3(D) OF 
THE HAYDEN HOME RULE CHARTER, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HAYDEN, COLORADO, UPON A MOTION DULY MADE, SECONDED AND PASSED AT 
ON February 15, AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING FOR March 7, 2024 AT THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF THE HAYDEN TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 178 WEST 
JEFFERSON AVENUE, HAYDEN, COLORADO. 
 
 
 
 
BY: ____________________________ ATTEST:__________________________________ 

Ryan Banks, Mayor      Andrea Salazar, Deputy Town Clerk 
 
 
FINALLY ADOPTED, PASSED, APPROVED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 3-3(h) OF THE HAYDEN HOME RULE CHARTER, BY THE TOWN 
COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO, UPON A MOTION DULY MADE, 
SECONDED AND PASSED AT ITS REGULAR MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN OF 
HAYDEN, ON THE 7th DAY OF February, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
BY: ____________________________ ATTEST:_________________________________ 

Ryan Banks, Mayor      Andrea Salazar, Deputy Town Clerk 



 

RESOLUTION 2024-02 
 

Supporting the Grant Application for a Community Impact Program Grant from the State Board of 
the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund and the completion of the Northwest Colorado Skate 
Dream Wheel Park.  
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Hayden supports the Great Outdoors Colorado grant application for the 
Northwest Colorado Skate Dream Wheel Park. And if the grant is awarded, the Town of Hayden 
supports the completion of the project.  
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Hayden has requested $500,000 from Great Outdoors Colorado to fund the 
Northwest Colorado Skate Dream Wheel Park project. 
 
WHEREAS, The Town Council supports the application and the appropriated matching funds for a 
grant with Great Outdoors Colorado. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE OF THE TOWN OF 
HAYDEN THAT: 
 
Section 1: The Town Council of the Town of Hayden strongly supports the application for a 

grant with Great Outdoors Colorado.  
 
Section 2:  If the grant is awarded, the Town Council of the Town of Hayden strongly supports 

the fulfillment of the project.  
 
Section 3:  If the grant is awarded, the Town Council of the Town of Hayden hereby authorizes 

the Town Manager to sign the grant agreement with Great Outdoors Colorado. 
 
Section 4: If the grant is awarded, the Town Council of the Town of Hayden authorizes the 

expenditure of funds necessary to meet the terms and obligations of the grant 
agreement. 

 
Section 5: This resolution to be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approved. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED  THIS 15TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024:   
 

_________________________________________________ 
       Ryan Banks, Mayor 
ATTEST 
  
 
Andrea Salazar, Deputy Town Clerk 


	Thursday, FEBRUARY 15, 2024
	ADPF0D1.tmp
	None

	ADP122D.tmp
	None

	ADP6720.tmp
	A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE acquisition BY EMINENT DOMAIN OF EASEMENT INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN routt COUNTY and described herein, FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING a wastewater transmis...
	Centerline Description
	Description

	ADPEEF0.tmp
	Centerline Description
	Description

	ADP8BA7.tmp
	A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE acquisition BY EMINENT DOMAIN OF EASEMENT INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN routt COUNTY and described herein, FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING a wastewater transmis...
	Centerline Description
	Description

	ADPFF6F.tmp
	A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAYDEN, COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE acquisition BY EMINENT DOMAIN OF EASEMENT INTERESTS IN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN routt COUNTY and described herein, FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING a wastewater transmis...
	Centerline Description
	Description

	ADP704C.tmp
	Centerline Description
	Description

	ADP1476.tmp
	Thursday, FEBRUARY 15, 2024

	ADP9A3F.tmp
	Thursday, FEBRUARY 15, 2024

	ADPFC64.tmp
	Thursday, FEBRUARY 15, 2024

	ADPF5C8.tmp
	Thursday, FEBRUARY 15, 2024




